
 
PLANNING COMMISSION 

Regular Meeting 
Town Hall 

January 7, 2014 
 
At 6:00 p.m. in the Town Hall, Chairman Dennis McCoy, having established a quorum, called to 
order the Regular Meeting of the Planning Commission. In addition to Chairman McCoy, present 
were Commissioners Andy Buchholz, Dan Burke, Joan Natali, Bill Stramm and Mike Strub.  
Commissioner Sandra Salopek was not in attendance.  Also present were Town Planner Rob 
Testerman and Town Clerk Libby Hume.  District 1 Supervisor Granville Hogg was in attendance. 
There were no members of the public in attendance. 
 
A moment of silence was observed followed by the Pledge of Allegiance.  
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS 
There were no comments from the public nor any written comments submitted prior to the 
meeting. 
 
CONSENT AGENDA 
 
Bill Stramm requested that the 2013 Annual Report be added to the agenda under New Business.  
Dennis McCoy stated that this discussion could precede the discussion regarding backyard 
chickens.  
 
Motion made by Joan Natali, seconded by Bill Stramm, to accept the agenda format as 
amended.  The motion was unanimously approved. 
 
The Commissioners reviewed the minutes for the December 10, 2013 Regular Meeting.   
 
Joan Natali noted two corrections on page 1 – a typographical correction under Reports and a 
grammatical correction in the last paragraph on page 1. 
 
Mike Strub suggested that on page 1 under Reports, “Restaurant” should be added after Aqua.  
 
Motion made by Mike Strub, seconded by Joan Natali, to approve the minutes from the 
December 10, 2013 Regular Meeting as amended.  The motion was unanimously approved. 
 
REPORTS 
Rob Testerman reported the following: i) The Harbor Area Review Board (HARB) met on January 2 
and reviewed two applications, one from The Shanty for proposed alterations and another 
regarding the proposed Virginia Waterman’s Memorial at the Harbor.  The application from The 
Shanty was recommended for Town Council approval as submitted and the Virginia Waterman’s 
Memorial application was recommended for approval with several conditions.  Council would be 
reviewing the information and HARB’s recommendations at their January 16 Regular Meeting; and 
ii) Eastern Shore Healthy Communities installed several “Cape Charles Walks” signs throughout 
Cape Charles – 1 on the north side of Central Park, 1 on Washington Avenue, 2 on Bay Avenue, 1 on 
Mason Avenue west of Sullivan’s Office Supply and 1 on Peach Street.  These signs were paid by 
grant funds. 
 
Dennis McCoy asked for background information regarding Town Council’s request for the 
Commission to research and draft a possible chicken ordinance.  Rob Testerman stated that he 
received notice that the residents of 109 Monroe Avenue were raising chickens and he issued 2 
violations since chickens were not permitted in Town.  The owner of the chickens wanted to 

 1 



challenge the violation and initially asked for a variance which was denied.  The owner then took 
the issue to the Town Council.  For now, the violations stood but the current zoning ordinance did 
not have time limits so the Town was letting the owner keep the chickens until this issue could be 
resolved.  Joan Natali added that the owner spoke at the Town Council meeting and 2 other 
individuals commented and 1 letter was submitted all in favor of permitting chickens. 
 
OLD BUSINESS  
A. Historic Town Entrance (HTE) Corridor Overlay District 

Rob Testerman stated that the changes made at the December meeting had been incorporated 
into this evening’s handout.  Rob Testerman went on to state that he had received a suggestion 
to include Professional Offices in Item 5 to require conditional use permits so as not to interfere 
with the professional offices in the Town and to keep this type of business in the Town.  The 
County was scheduled to finalize their draft ordinance at their January 14 meeting and schedule 
a joint public hearing for March 14, 2014.  Another round of public information meetings was 
anticipated in February.  It would be helpful to submit the Town’s recommendations to the 
County mid-January.  Since this was not a Town ordinance, there would be no vote by the Town 
Council.  If agreeable with the Commissioners, once the Commissioners approved the proposed 
language, it would be emailed to the Town Council for their review and comments prior to 
being submitted to the County.   
 
The Commissioners reviewed the revised language and discussed the following: i) Dennis 
McCoy asked whether the Commissioners had any issue regarding adding Professional Offices 
to item 5 requiring a conditional use permit.  There were no objections; ii) Dan Burke asked for 
clarification of why the Commissioners were reviewing this language.  Joan Natali responded 
that the County was currently working to update their zoning ordinance.  This document would 
be the Town’s input for the County zoning ordinance for the HTE Corridor Overlay District.  
Supervisor Hogg stated that with the Public Service Authority’s (PSA) endeavor and the changes 
to the Northampton County Zoning Ordinance, the Town needed to be cognizant of the changes 
that were about to happen.  The area being considered by the PSA encompassed the properties 
south of the Sun Trust Bank in Cheriton to Frank Wendell’s commercial property south of Route 
13, an area approximately 3.5 – 4 miles long with Cape Charles’ entrance in the middle.  Rob 
Testerman stated that this ordinance covered approximately 1 mile north and south of the Cape 
Charles traffic light; iii) Bill Stramm asked about Cheriton’s boundary adjustment.  Rob 
Testerman stated that he had spoken with Peter Stith who informed him that the issue was still 
in executive session and not public knowledge; iv) Bill Stramm suggested adding language to 
include the proposed Bicycle Trail.  Joan Natali stated that the County was aware of the Bicycle 
Trail plan and recommended including a reference to the trail in the cover letter when the 
proposed ordinance was submitted to the County.  Joan Natali brought out her copy of the 
VDOT/ANPDC 2035 Transportation Plan which included language regarding the Bicycle Trail.  
Dennis McCoy added that this showed the County’s commitment to the plan; v) Rob Testerman 
stated that “wastewater treatment plant” and “waste related” were added as prohibited uses in 
the HTE; vi) Rob Testerman stated that in item 8.b.1., language was added that in the event of 
conflicting regulations with VDOT, VDOT’s minimum requirements would supersede the 
standards in the section; vii) Joan Natali requested that under 9.e. dark sky compliance be 
suggested. 
 

Motion made by Bill Stramm, seconded by Dan Burke, to alert Town Council of the revised 
Historic Town Entrance Corridor Overlay District ordinance by email prior to the Town 
Council meeting.  The motion was unanimously approved. 

 
B. Comprehensive Plan Review - §§ 3.5 through 3.B.6 

Rob Testerman stated that Town Council approved using the Accomack-Northampton Planning 
District Commission (ANPDC) for the Comprehensive Plan update and he and Heather Arcos 

 2 



would meet with Elaine Meil of the ANPDC on January 15 to discuss the process.  The 
Commission would work with Curtis Smith and Barbara Schwenk on the update. 
 
The Commissioners reviewed §§ 3.5 through 3.B.6 and noted the areas needing to be updated. 
 
In § 3.5, the following were noted: i) Under the Uses for Harbor Mixed Use (Harbor), 
“residential” needed to be added; ii) “Now known as Bay Creek” would be removed from all 
references to the Accawmacke Plantation PUD;  iii) References to “STIP” and “PD-STIP” would 
be updated accordingly as noted last month; and iv) “Town Edge” would be updated to keep the 
terminology consistent with the County.   
 
In § 3.6, Under “Long Term or Strategic,” the word “must” was changed to “will.” 
 
In § 3.6.1, the reference to “Corridor Overlay” in the last bullet was changed to “Historic Town 
Entrance Corridor Overlay” for consistency with the County. 
 
In § 3.6.2, a bullet was added to show “Continue to improve protection of the Port of Cape 
Charles.” 
 
In § 3.A.5, the reference to “STIP” and “PD-STIP” would be updated under Business & Industry. 
  
In § 3.A.5.1, the following changes were made to the Table: i) Under 1, Description, “Randolph 
Avenue” was added to the second bullet, the fourth bullet was changed to show “Continue 
sidewalk improvements,” and the fifth bullet was changed to “Maintain Central Park …;” ii) 
Under 3, Applies to Neighborhoods, “now known as Bay Creek” was removed from the 
reference to Accawmacke Plantation PUD; iii) Under 4, Applies to Neighborhoods, “Bay Creek 
Marina on King’s Creek” was changed to “Kings Creek Marina;” iv) Under 4, Description, a bullet 
was added to show “enhance protection of the Port of Cape Charles (reduce wave action, reduce 
coastal erosion, increase safe harborage);” v) Under 5, 7 and 8, Applies to Neighborhoods, “now 
known as Bay Creek” was removed; vi) Under 8, Description, in the bullet referring to golf carts, 
“(designated Golf Cart Paths only)” was added, and a new bullet for “personal transportation 
vehicles” was added; and vii) Under 9, Description, in the first bullet under “The Town should,” 
reference to the Parson’s Circle connection to Route 13 was deleted in preparation for the 
planned Harbor  Access Road, and in the third bullet, the language was changed to show 
“Enhance landscaping and signage at Route 184 and Route 642 and at Route 13.”  
 
In § 3.A.5.2, “Cape Harbor” was deleted and “Town Marina” was changed to “Town Harbor.” 
 
In § 3.B.4, the following changes were made: i) In the first bullet, “on the Chesapeake Bay and 
part of the intracoastal waterway” was added at the end of the first sentence; ii) Under “Great 
amenities,” the capitalization was changed for consistency, “sports facilities” was moved to a 
separate bullet, new bullets were added for “watersports,” “recreational fishing and crabbing,” 
and “waterfront and fine dining;” iii) The fourth main bullet was changed to show “An existing 
industrial/commercial infrastructure,” “and sport” was deleted from the second bullet, and a 
new bullet was added for “Yacht center;” and iv) The last main bullet deleted “and wastewater” 
since the new wastewater plant had been built. 
 
In § 3.B.5, the last bullet was changed from “Create a web portal…” to “Maintain a web portal…” 
 
In § 3.B.5.1, reference to “a corridor overlay” in the third bullet was changed to show the 
“Historic Town Entrance Corridor Overlay” for consistency with the County. 
 

 3 



In § 3.B.5.3, under “Promote tax incentives such as,” new bullets were added for “Technology 
Zone” and “Tourism Zone.” 
 
In § 3.B.5.4, it was suggested to check with the Finance or Building Departments regarding the 
number of vacation rentals in the Town. 
 
In § 3.B.5.6, it was suggested that the Town check with its new website hosting company 
regarding key words to improve the Town’s position on all search engines. 
 
Dennis McCoy suggested that a context statement be included at the beginning of the 
Comprehensive Plan to define what a Comprehensive Plan was.  Joan Natali stated that it would 
be ideal in the Executive Summary if it wasn’t already included. 
 
For the February meeting, the Commissioners would review pages 38-51. 
 

NEW BUSINESS  
 
B. 2013 Annual Report 

Rob Testerman stated that after receiving the email from Bill Stramm, he had drafted a Staff 
Report putting together information regarding the annual report to the Town Council and 
added that he would prepare a report documenting the various tasks performed by the 
Commission in 2013.   
 
Bill Stramm recommended the Commissioners review the annual report from Petersburg which 
was included in the handouts last month.   
 
Rob Testerman stated that he would provide a draft report for review by the Commissioners at 
the February meeting. 

 
A. Backyard Chickens 

Rob Testerman stated that he would review various ordinances regarding backyard chickens 
and added that he had spoken to someone who had researched a multitude of issues and she 
forwarded a lot of information to him to review.  After the Commissioners began their review, 
public input meetings would be scheduled to obtain feedback from the residents.  The City of 
Chesapeake approved an ordinance for a 1-year test period and recently adopted the ordinance 
permanently. 
 
Joan Natali stated that she found a website that listed all the states with localities that allowed 
chickens and brought up the following questions:  

• Would permits be required? 
• If permitted, in which districts? 
• For single-family residences only? 
• Must the property be owner-occupied? 
• What would be the setbacks from the lot line and alley for a coop? 
• Would a coop be required? 
• Would clean water be required on a regular basis? 
• How often should the coop and yard be cleaned? 
• Can the owner sell eggs?  Are permits or licenses required? 
• How many chickens could an individual have?  Based on square feet?   
• Would there be a minimum lot size? 
• Would there be restrictions on slaughtering? 
• Would fencing be required to restrict the chickens to the owner’s yard? 

   

 4 



 
 
 
OTHER 
Bill Stramm asked whether the Town’s sign at the Harbor and the one planned for Strawberry 
Street were legal.  Joan Natali looked up the new sign regulations which stated that directional and 
way-finding signs were exempt from the chapter. 
 
ANNOUNCEMENTS 
There were no announcements. 
 
Motion made by Andy Buchholz, seconded by Joan Natali, to adjourn the Planning 
Commission meeting.  The motion was unanimously approved. 
 
 
   
       Chairman Dennis McCoy 
 
  
Town Clerk 

 5 


